# THURSDAY, 28 JANUARY 2021

Minutes of a meeting of the **Development Committee** held remotely via Zoom at 9.30 am when there were present:

#### Councillors

Mrs P Grove-Jones (Chairman) Mr P Heinrich (Vice-Chairman)

Mr A Brown Mr P Fisher Mrs W Fredericks Mr N Lloyd Mr N Pearce Mr A Yiasimi Mr C Cushing Mrs A Fitch-Tillett Mr R Kershaw Mr G Mancini-Boyle Mr A Varley

Mr J Toye - observer

#### **Officers**

Mr P Rowson, Assistant Director of Planning Mr N Doran, Principal Lawyer Mr D Watson, Interim Development Manager E Denny, Democratic Services Manager Miss L Yarham, Democratic Services & Governance Officer (Regulatory)

# 59 <u>TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DETAILS OF ANY SUBSTITUTE</u> <u>MEMBER(S)</u>

None.

# 60 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

The Chairman stated that an update would be given on a matter relating to an appeal case under item 7 of the agenda.

#### 61 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor A Brown stated that he was the local Member for Minute 62 and knew the landowner.

### 62 <u>STODY - PF/20/1798 - TEN ARRAYS OF GROUND MOUNTED SOLAR</u> <u>PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS TO SUPPLY ELECTRICITY FOR USE BY THE STODY</u> <u>ESTATE</u>

The Interim Development Manager presented the report. He reported that Environmental Health and the Highway Authority had no objections and required no conditions. He recommended approval of this application as set out in the report, with an additional condition to require the removal of the panels, mounts and associated equipment after 25 years or earlier if they are no longer required for the generation of electricity. The site would then be required to be restored to its condition prior to the implementation of the permission.

Councillor A Brown, the local Member, stated that the proposal had only come

before the Committee due to the scale of the development. The site was in a remote location, well away from any residential properties and concealed by landscaping on more than one side. The proposal was compliant with Policy SS4 and in accordance with the Council's Corporate Plan in that the scheme would supply the applicant with a significant amount of renewable energy. He considered that this application demonstrated that it was an entirely sustainable development for the large farming operation. He was pleased that a time limit condition was to be added. He understood that conditions would be included in respect of lighting and security systems, and that satisfactory fencing details had now been submitted. He stated that he was on record on the public website in support of this application, but his comments had not been included in the report. He referred to the support from Stody with Hunworth Parish Council and also Edgefield and Briston Parish Councils, and the lack of objection from local residents and consultees. He supported the Officer's recommendation.

The Chairman asked if there had been any response with regard to lighting.

The Interim Development Manager explained that no lighting was proposed as part of this application and the proposed conditions would require details of lighting to be provided if it were required at a later date.

Councillor G Mancini-Boyle requested information regarding recyclability and lifespan of the panels.

The Assistant Director of Planning explained that whilst he appreciated that these were important questions, particularly in the context of the Council's declaration of a climate emergency, they were not material planning matters that could be taken into account when considering this application. At a later stage in the meeting, he undertook to explore this matter with the applicant following the meeting and provide an update.

Councillor N Lloyd considered that this was exactly the type of scheme that the Council should be promoting, and proposed the approval of this application.

Councillor P Heinrich stated that there was a need to encourage small scale green energy schemes as far as possible. He considered that this proposal was well thought out and appeared to be highly effective in addressing the applicant's needs. He seconded the proposal to approve this application.

In response to concerns raised by the Chairman regarding permeable deer fencing and possible harm to the animals or the equipment underneath the panels, the Interim Development Manager explained that the fencing was permeable to allow small animals through but deer would not be able to enter the site. The equipment underneath the panels were inverters to convert the current from DC to AC.

Councillor R Kershaw added that the same fencing had been used in a solar energy scheme at Scottow that had been place for 10 years, with no incidences of harm to animals.

It was proposed by Councillor N Lloyd, seconded by Councillor P Heinrich and

#### **RESOLVED** unanimously

That this application be approved in accordance with the recommendation of the Assistant Director of Planning, to include an additional condition to

# require the removal of the panels, mounts and associated equipment after 25 years or earlier if they are no longer required for the generation of electricity.

Councillor C Stockton attended the meeting for the following item, having been unable to join the meeting for the earlier items.

#### 63 CLEY-NEXT-THE-SEA - ENF/18/0164 - APPEAL UPDATE

The Assistant Director of Planning updated the Committee on mediation proceedings that had been held in relation to an appeal against an enforcement notice requiring the demolition of Arcady, Cley-next-the-Sea. He reported that progress had been made towards a satisfactory resolution to avoid the demolition of the building, the details of which were currently confidential. As a result, it was likely that a request would be made to the Planning Inspectorate to defer the informal hearing that was due to take place on 8 February. A full public statement would be made when further information could be released.

In response to a question by Councillor Mrs W Fredericks regarding costs, the Assistant Director of Planning explained that the cost of mediation would be borne by the public purse, but it was potentially a quicker and less expensive solution than an appeal hearing. The Principal Lawyer added that each party was responsible for its own costs and the appellant's costs were not borne by the Council.

The meeting closed at 10.00 am.

CHAIRMAN Thursday, 11 February 2021